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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board's Report, the management report and chairman's report, but does not
include the financial statement and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under sub-section 10 of
Section 143 of the Act will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

2. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

3. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors (i) in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

4. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

5. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit:

b) In aur opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of those books:

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect fo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended):

. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would the impact its financial
position in its financial statements.

i. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has
used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit frail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.
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h) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, being a private fimited
company provisions of section 197 to the Act are not applicable to the company.

For § C V J & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 148419W

@) [FRE - 14R41OW | #
Sheetal Jethaji Solanki S\ MUMBA
Partner
Mem. No.: 174874 \
UDIN:- 2-ST#43F4 BMN2 61y 93/

Place : Mumbai
Date : 7t May, 2025
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditor's Report

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Report
of even date on the accounts of House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited for the year ended 31st March
2025.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of the audit and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records as were considered appropriate we report that;

(i) a) (i) The company has maintained proper records, showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(i) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

b)  As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in
accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable,
considering the size of the company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, in
accordance with this program certain Property Plant and Equipment were verified during the
year. The frequency of verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such physical verification.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee). Hence, clause 3 (i) (c) is not applicable
to the company.

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
its property, plant and Equipment and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) @) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital demand / term loans in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. As per information and explanation given to us that sanctioned letter
of such working capital term loans, the company is not required to filed Quarterly returns /
statements and other information with such Banks / financial institution.
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(i)~ With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the Company to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

a) As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, during the year, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
has not granted any advances in the nature of companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other entities during the year. Hence paragraph 3 (i) (a), (b), (c), (d), ()
& (f) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Sections 185. Further in our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 in respect of the investments made, loans provided and the Company has
not provided any guarantees or security to parties covered under Section 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

(vii) a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employee's state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods & service tax, cess,
tax deducted at source and other statutory dues to the extent applicable to the Company.
According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no undisputed amount payable in respect of such statutory dues
which have remained outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 for a period more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom
duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute with the appropriate authorities.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are
not accounted in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in tax assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded
income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in
paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to
any lender during the year.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any govermnment authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on based on our examination
of records of the company, the working capital term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds
from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates, or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has made preferential allotment
of 1,14,193 fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 2,186
per equity share on private placement basis. The Company has complied with section 42
and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to preferential allotment of these
shares. The Company has not issued any fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures
during the year.

During the course of our examination of the boaks and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143 (12) of the Act, in
Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

- 14R49GW |+
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c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to company.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the said Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the section 177
and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act,

(xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with
provision of section 138 of the Act. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the said Order is not

applicable.
(xvi) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.
Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company does not have any CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
overall financial statements of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 1512.67
Lakhs and Rs. Rs. 1157.19.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions
stated in paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ERIL- 14R41TWY ) ¢
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report.

For 8§ C VJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 148419W

e
et
Sheetal Jethaji Solanki MUMBAI
Partner - :

f? FRHN - 14R419W

Mem. No.: 174874 S
UDIN : ‘25_7%3%3?‘4#!267\,\@3 e

Place : Mumbai
Date : 7% May, 2025
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of
House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited for the year ended 31st March 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of House of Masaba Lifestyle
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

FRN - 14R419W

MUMBAL
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For S C VJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 148419W

-
Sheetal Jethaji Solanki

Partner
Mem. No.: 174874

UDIN- 2 1484 BMN2 693w 5.3 1

Place : Mumbai
Date . 7hMay, 2025
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House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
in Lakh
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Notes
ASSETS
I Non-Current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a 1,788.24 1,508.45
{b) Capital wark-in-progress 3b 25.08 50.69
(c] Right-of-use assets 4a 8,655.74 5,359.13
(d) Other Intangfble assets 4b 44.32 42.67
{f) Intangible assets under development
{e) Financial assets
{i) Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture
(il) Other investments
{iil} Security deposits 5 747.81 617.19
{f] Deferred tax assets (net) 6 682.68 682.68
{g) Non-current tax assets (net) 7 10.59 4.65
(h) Other non-current assets 8 92.34 49.08
Total - Non-current assets 12,046.85 8,314.59
It Current agsets
(a) Inventaries 9 3,443,568 2,301.07
(b] Financial assets
(i) Loans 10 26.76 7.69
(ii) Security deposits 11 106.91 27.04
(iii] Trade receivables 12 535.93 518.43
(iv Cash and Cash equivalents 13 18.41 132.62
(v) Bank balance atherthan Cash and Cash equivalents 14 17.02 16.16
(d} Other Current assets. 15 1,174.82 1,082.89
Total - Current assets 5,323.55 4,085.93
TOTAL - ASSETS 17,370.37 12,400.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| Equity
(a) Equity share Capital 16 111.52 100.10
(b) Other equity 7 1,154.44 2,255.82
Total - Equity 1,265.96 2,355.93
Il Non-Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings B 18 666.98 366.50
(i) Lease liabilities 4b 7,301.72 4,480.57
{iii, Deposits 19 8207 9571
(b) Provisions 20 204.49 115.04
(c) Other non-current liabilities
Total - Non-Current liabilities 8,255.26 5,057.83
Il Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrewings 21 3,494.19 1,800.00
{il) Lease liabilities ab 1,730.49 975.56
(iii} Trade payables
Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 22 62.11 363.02
Total outstanding dues of Creditars other than micro enterprises and small 1,477.50 1,005.92
enterprises
(v’ Other Financial Liabilities 23 741.35 644.25
(b) Provisions 24 2431 19.08
(c) Other Current liabilties 25 319.20 178.94
Total - Current liabilities 7,849.14 4,986.76
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,370.37 12,400.52
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemants.
As per our report of even date
For 5 CV ] & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 148419\
) (FRN- 1484190
*
MUMBAI
Sheetal Jethaji Solanki
Partner
Membership No: 1?7%’L\%3"L{9 (;—! N 9 9> \ ; (DIN: (§1842066) {DIN: 0A773852}
Place: Mumha-j Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.05.2025 Date: 07.05.2025 Date: 07.05.2025




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Xin Lakh
ey Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I Revenue from operations 26 11,478.55 6,957.85
Il Other income 27 109.11 74.21
Il Total income (1 + 11} 11,587.65 7,032.07
W Expenses
(a) Cost of materials Consumed 28a 3,675.23 2,185.90
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 28b (1,327.63) {961.33)
{c) Employee benefits expense 29 2,736.17 2,085.63
(d) Finance Costs 30 878.95 445.91
{e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 2,084.79 1,319.69
{f) Rent expense 259.00 96.58
(g) Other expenses 32 6,878.59 4,336.56
Total expenses 15,185.11 9,508.95
V  Profit/(Loss) before tax {lIl - V) (3,597.46) {2,476.88)
VI Income tax expense
(a) Current tax - -
{b) Defarred tax 33 - -211.21
(c) Taxation for earlier year - 3.41
- (207.79)
VIl Profit/(Loss) for the year {V - Vi) {3,597.46) (2,269.08)
Vill  Other Comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans -0.18 -2.19
Income tax effect on above - 0.55
Income tax effect on above = -
Total other Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (0.18) {1.64)
IX Total Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (VI + VIII) (3,597.64) (2,270.73)
X Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share % 10 (March 31,2025: %10 )] 34
Basic (%) (333.58) (226.67)
Diluted () (333.58) (226.67)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For $ CV ] & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 148419W

=

Sheetal lethaji Solanki
Partner

Membership No: 174874 SED O S j
LDIN: 21 4 874 BR NP 3IS
Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.05.2025

Place: Mumbal
Date: 07.05.2025

(DIN: 07 A73852)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07.05.2025




Hause of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

a. Equity share Capital
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % in Lakh No. of shares X in Lakh
Equity shares of % 10 each, authorised
As at the beginning of the year 14,00,000 140.00 14,00,000 140.00
Changas in Equity share capital during the year - - - -
As at the end of the year 14,00,000.00 1 140.00 14,00,000 140.00
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares X in Lakh No. of shares X in Lakh
Equity shares of X 10 each, subscribed and paid up
As at the beginning of the year 10,01,046 100.10 10,01,046 100.10
Equity shares issued during the year 1,14,193 11.42 - -
As at the end of the year 11,15,239 111.52 10,01,046 100.10
b. Other equity
R in Lakh

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive income

Securities premium

Retained earnings (Refer

Remeasurement gains/
{losses) on defined

Falr value gains/
(losses) on equity

Total ather equity

(Refer Note - 17) Note - 17) benefit plans (Refer instruments (Refer
Note - 17) Note - 17)

As at April 01, 2023 6,548.81 (2,007.36) (14.50) & 4,526.55
Profit/(Loss) for the year % -2,265.08 - r (2,269.08)
Share forfeiture/ (issued) during the year - - - -
Premium received on issue of shares during the year - = 2 5 &
Utilised during the year for bonus issue = -
Utilised during the year for share issue expense ¥ - - - -
Other Comprehensive income for the year - - -1.64 = {1.64)
As at March 31, 2024 6,548.81 (4,276.45) (16.54) = 2,255.82
b. Other equity

X in Lakh

Reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive income

Remeasurement gains/

Fair value gains/

Particulars Securities premium | Retained earnings (Refer| {losses) on defined {losses} on equity Total other equity
(Refer Note - 17) Note - 17} benefit plans (Refer instruments (Refer
Note - 21) Note - 21)

As at April 01, 2024 6,548.81 (4,276.45) (16.54) - 2,255.82
Profit/(Loss) for the year = (3,597.46) - - (3,597.46)
Premium received on issue of shares during the year 2,496 - - - 2,496.26
Utilised during the year for bonus issue = =
Utilised during the year for share issue expenss - =
Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year - - (0.18) & (0.18)
As at March 31, 2025 9,045.07 {7,873.91) 16.72) - 1,154.44

As per our repert of even date

For 5 CV ] & Assaciates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 148419W

Sheetal Jethajl Solanki
Partner R
Membership No: 174874

UDIN: 251 Y4RFURHN
Place: Mumbal

Date: 07.05.2025
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House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in Lakh
Notes Year ended March 31,2025 Vear ended March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss hefore tax (3,597.46) (2,476.88)
Adjustments far:
Depreclation and amartisation expense 31 2,084.79 1,31969
Finance costs 30 878.95 445.91
Galn on retirement of right-of-use assets 27 (48.73) -
{Profit)/ Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment - 737
Net {gain)/ loss recorded in profit or loss on financial liabilities designated 27 (50.08) (32.18)
as at fair value through profit or loss
Interest on FD 27 (0.95) {0.60)
Net gain on sale of current investments 27 - (31.93)
Provisian for doubtful debts, deposits and advances 32 25.53 -
Operating prafit before working capital changes {707.95) (768.63)
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (17.50) (290.69)
{Increase)/ decrease in inventories (1,142.60) (1,330.00)
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets (19.07) 246
{Increase)/ decrease In other current financial assets (105.39) {14.39)
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets (102.53) (674.08)
(Increase)/ decrease in other non current assets (43.25) 43.53
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 17068 843.51
Increase/ (decrease] in provisions 94.67 41,64
Increase/ (decrease) in other Current liabilities 127.06 1197
Increase/ (decrease) in other Financial liabilities 97.10 442.70
Cash generated from operatians (1,648.78) {1,691.96)
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 8.55 7.61
Net cash flows from operating activities (1,640.23) (1,684.36)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and capital (668.95) (910.25)
advance
Investment in Fixed Deposits - (5.00)
Proceeds from sale/ maturity of current investments - 1,949.24
Interest received 1.04 0.60
Net cash flows used in invasting activities {667.91) 1,034.59
Cash fiows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 2,507.68 -
Proceeds/ (repayments) of non current deposit (166.67} (280.48)
Proceeds frem borrowings 1,994.67 2,166.50
Lease liabilities (1,896.14) (1,180.77)
Interest paid (245.62) (33.80)
Net cash flows used in financing activities 2,193.93 671.46
Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents {114.21) 21.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13362 110.93
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 18.41 132.62
Companents of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - on current accounts 1841 13262
Balances with banks - on depasit accounts (original maturity less than 3 months) :
18.41 132.62
Total Cash and cash equivalents 18.41 13&5&

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For5 CVJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 148419

i

Sheetal Jethaji Solanki
Partner
Membership No: 174874

ggn!\rgha‘i 2q1/a‘— L"% Place: Mumbal Placa: Mumbai

Date: 07.05.2025 Date: 07.05.2025 Date: 07.05.2025




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Corporate Information

House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited (the "Company”), the registered office of the Company is located at Plot No. 80, 8,
House of Masaba, Plot No. 15, Marol Cooperative Industrial Estate Road, Andheri East, Mumbai, Mumbai Suburban,
Maharashtra, 400059.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and/or retailing of branded apparels/accesscries and beauty
products and runs a chain of apparels & beauty products retail stores in India.

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 7, 2025.

Significant accounting policies

2.1

2.3

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended by notification dated 31
May, 2021), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and presentation requirements of Division
1T of Schedule IIT of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. The financial statements have been
prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities, which have
been measured al fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
Defined employee benefit plans;

Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair value; and

Derivative financial instruments.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended the following accounting standards and the amendments are applicable for
financial periods commencing from April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its
financial statements and complied with the same.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (%) which is the functional currency of the Company. All
amounLs are rounded to two decimal places to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(I) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presenls assels and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liahilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(umn

(a)
(b)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(II) Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Board of Directors of the Company assesses the [inancial performance and position of the
Company. The Managing Director has been identified as the CODM. The Company operates in one segment only i.e.
Sale of garments and fashion Accessories. Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made for the

business segment. The Company has disclosed its secgmental information based on geographical area viz Within India
and Outside India.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments, such asinvestments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries and
joint ventures) and derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which sufficient data are
available to measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liahilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

» Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

e level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based
onthe lowest level of input that is significant Lo the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

(IV)  Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of th
at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Standalone Balance Sheet date. -




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

)

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monelary items are recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the reco gnition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Standalone Statement of Profit and 1oss are also reclassified in OCI or the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with:

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of
the related asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, at a below-market rate
of interest, the effect of this favorable interest is treated as a government grant. The loan or assistance is
initially recognized and measured at fair value, and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the proceeds received and the initial carrying value of the loan. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policies applicable to financial liabilities.

(VI) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the pericd they oceur in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings,

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest
costs.

(VII) Taxes

Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income

based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary ifferences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent thatitis-probable that
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House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Laxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relaling to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the Lransaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as a part of business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information is received or circumstances change.
Acquired deferred tax benefits recognized within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that
acquisition, if they result from new information obtained about facts and eireurnstances existing at the
aequisition date.

The Company had adopted the new tax regime in the Financial Year 2019-20 under Section 115BAA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordi nance, 2019.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
are recognized outside the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax
and deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

(VIII) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment based on internal [ external factors. An impairment loss, if any,
is charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the vear in which an asset is identified as
impaired. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash-generaling unit’s (CGUs) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rates, that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on
inventories, are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually as at reporting
date. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first Lo reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the umit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognized directly in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reversal of impairment losses except on goodwill is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment
losses recognized for the assets no longer exist or have decreased. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

x)

Derivative financial instruments

x)

(X1

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risks and options contract in accordance with agreement. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in
OCT and later reclassified to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedge item affects the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss or trealed as basis adjustment, if a hedged forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursements.

When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo sellle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Refer Note - 40).

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to setlle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uneertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company (Refer Note — 45).

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remo te, are
not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the reco gnition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Employee benefits

(a) Short-term emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense on acerual basis.
(b)  Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund and
Superannuation Fund, which are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, on acerual
basis. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. =—
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House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(¢) Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity (unfunded), the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the tenor of the related obligation. The liability or asset
recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of the net defined liability, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

(d) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to oceur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date,

(XII) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividendsrelative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. Earnings, considered
in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share, is the net profit for the period after deducting preference
dividends. The weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
treasury shares and events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
pericd are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(XIII) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Standalone Balance Sheet and for the purpose of the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows comprise cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposits with original maturity period
of three months and short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturily of three months or less
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Critical Accounting J udgenients, Estimates And Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, the accompanying disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resultin outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Estimates
and assumptions are reviewed on periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, are described
below. The Company's assumptions and estimates are based on parameters available at the time of preparalion of
financial statements. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(@

(e)

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits.

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has ¥ 68.08 Crore (March 31, 2024: X 38.05 Crore) of tax losses carried
forward as per income tax records of the Company. These losses pertain to unabsorbed business loss as at March
31, 2025 of X 62.38 Crore (March 31, 2023: ¥ 34.98 Crore) which has an expiry of eight years and unabsorbed
depreciation loss as at March 31, 2025 of % 5.70 Crore (March 31, 2023: X 3.07 Crore) which do not have any
expiry period.

Employee benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other employment benefits plan are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-lerm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans,
the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for
India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demo graphic changes. Future salary
increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note - 28.
Provision on inventories

The Company has defined policy for provision on inventory foreach of its business by differentiating the inventory
into core and non-core (fashion) and sub-categorised into finished goods and raw materials. The Company
provides provision based on policy, past experience, current trend and future expectations of these materials
depending on the category of goods.

Provision for discount and sales return

The Company provides for discount and sales return based on season wise, brand wise and channel wise trend of
previous years. The Company reviews the trend at regular intervals to ensure the applicability of the same in the
changing scenario, and based on the management's assessment of market conditions.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined
based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off if the
same are not collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for doubtful debts is ¥ 67.60 Lakhs (March 31, 2024:
X 67.60 lakhs).

() Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
oplion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exereised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination oplions. The Company applies
Jjudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. It
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the 0

to terminate.
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(g) Going concern

The management has performed an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based
on the assessment, the management believes that there is no material uncertainty with respect to any events or
conditions that may cast a significant doubt on the entily to continue as a going concern, hence the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective 1
April 2023:

Disclosure of accounting policies amendments to Ind AS 1

Definition of accounting estimates amendments to Ind AS 8

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction amendments to Ind AS 12
The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected
to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequent of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory
treatment.

Mumbai




Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is earried at historical cost. Historieal cost includes expenditure that is direetly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects, if the
recognition criteria is met.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iterm will flow to the Company, and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
de-recognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss, during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset
estimated by the management. Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro rata basis from the month of
installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deletions/ disposals is provided on a pro rata basis upto the month
preceding the month of deletions/ disposals. The management believes that these estimated useful lives reflect fair

approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has used the following rates
to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

(a) Assets where useful life is same as Schedule IT

Assets Useful life as prescribed by
Schedule IT of the Companies Act,
2013
Factory buildings g 30 years
Fences, wells, tube wells 5 years
Borewells (pipes, tubes and other fittings) 5 vears
Other office equipment 5 vears
Flectrical installations and equipment (at factory) [ 10 years
(b) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule IT
Assets Useful life as Estimated
prescribed by useful life
Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013
}l’llr?i; and machinery — retail stores & Processing 15 fears .
Furniture and fittings — retail stores 10 years 5— 6 years
Furniture and fittings — shop in shop stores 10 years 3 years
Motoreycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 years 5 years
Motor buses, motor lorries and motor cars other 6 years for motor cars 4 — 5 years
than those used in a business of running them on and 8 years for motor
hire buses and motor lorries
Servers, end user devices, such as desktops, 3 years for end user 4 years
laptops, ete. devices and 6 years for
servers
Furniture and fittings (other than retail stores) 10 vears 7 years
Office electrical equipment 5 years 4 years
Electrically operated vehicles including battery 8 years 5 years
powered or fuel cell powered vehicles

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule IT has been estimated by the management, supported

by technical assessment.

Leasehold assets

Assets
Leasehold improvements at stores

Estimated useful life
5 to 6 vears or period of lease, whichever is shorter

D (FRY - 14841W
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Leasehold improvements other than | Period oflease
stores

Based on managements’ assessment, items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five
thousand rupees, are depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use or useful life of class of
asset to which these assets belong.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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NOTE: 3a
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
X in Lakh
Plant and Machinery  Leasehold improvements Computers Furniture and fixtures Office equipment Total
Cost
As at April 01, 2023 1254 628.62 9267 173.91 77.32 985.06
Additions 45.76 610.55 4393 i84.30 128.51 1,013.46
Dispasals - 91.05 10.80 36.20 16.16 154.21
As at March 31, 2024 58.30 1,148.11 125.80 32201 180.07 1,844.31
As at April 1, 2024 58.30 1,148.11 125.80 322.02 190.07 1,844.31
Additions 1.56 373.20 46.20 242,25 40.83 704.03
Disposals - 12.84 0.05 15.80 0.63 29.32
As at March 31, 2025 59.86 1,508.48 171.96 548,47 230.26 2,519.03
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 2.65 42.80 15.36 5.78 7.21 73719
Depreciation for the year 7.42 181.40 22.73 35.73 24.44 2711.72
Disposals = 9.47 0.04 0.03 0.05 9.65
As at March 31, 2024 10.07 214.73 38.05 41.42 31.60 335.86
As at April 1, 2024 10.07 21473 38.05 41.42 31.60 335.86
Depreciation for the year 12.26 233.06 34.60 67.10 47.88 394.90
Disposals - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 22.33 447.79 72.66 108.51 79.47 730.76
Net carrying value as at:
March 31, 2025 37.53 1,060.69 99.30 439.96 150.79 1,788.24
March 31, 2024 . 48.23 933.38 87.75 280.60 158.47 1,508.45
March 31, 2023 9.89 585.81 77.32 168.13 70.11 911.27
Net carrying value
%in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment 1,788.24 1,508.45
Total 1,788.24 1,508.45
NOTE: 3b
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Rin Lakh
Leasehold Improvements Software Subscriptian Total
As at March 31, 2024 50.69 - 50.69
Additions 649,12 20.96 670.08
Capitalised during the year 674.72 20.96 695.68
March 31, 2025 25.08 - 25.08
Ageing of Capital work-in-progress as on March 31, 2025
Xin Lakh
Capital work-in-progress Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3years| More than 3 years Total|
(i)Projects in progress 25.08 = = = 25.08

(il}Projects tempararily jed =




Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assess whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinet asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset either the Company has the right to operate the asset; or the Company designed the asset in a
way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Where the Company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for short-
term leases which are less than 12 months and leases of low value assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured

at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the
leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-
use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periadically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing
rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments. The lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due to change
in the lease term, change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not mest the definition of investment property, and lease
liabilities, separately in the Standalone Balance Sheet,

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have alease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease

payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.




Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset is
classified as an operating lease. Assets subject to operating leases are included in the property, plant and
equipment. Rental income on an operating lease is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the
Standalone Statermnent of Profit and Loss.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 4a
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets

gin Lakh
Right of use Buildings Total
Cost
Asset Recognised as on March 31, 2024 7,164.26 7,164.26
Additions 5,565.40 5,565.40
Modification - -
Termination 768.58 768.58
As at March 31, 2025 11,961.08 11,961.08
Depreciation
Asset Recognised as on March 31, 2024 1,805.13 1,805.13
Depreciation for the year (Refer Note - 31) 1,670.57 1,670.57
Termination 170.37 170.37
As at March 31, 2025 3,305.33 3,305.33
Net carrying value as at:
As at March 31, 2025 8,655.74 8,655.74
As at March 31, 2024 5,359.13 5,359.13
Net carrying value
% in Lakh
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Right-of-use assets 8,655.74 5,359.13
Total 8,655.74 5,359.13
{ii) Lease liabilities
Xin Lakh
As at Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening balance 5,456.13 4,691.89
Additions 5,487.97 1,534.51
Retirements (643.01) -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 827.26 £10.50
Rent concession (Refer Note - 27) -
Payments {1,896.14) (1,180.77)
Closing balance 9,032.20 5,456.13
Current 1,730.49 975.56
Non-current 7,301.72 4,480.57

Refer Statement of Cash Flow for total cash outflow on accaunt of lease payments during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Following are the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 on an undiscounted basis:

% in Lakh
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Not later than one year 2,266.73 1,376.10
Later than one year but within five years 7,849.70 4,548.54
Later than five years 1,248.13 941.74
Total 11,364.55 6,866.38
Following are expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:
Xin Lakh

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Depreciation Expense on Right of Use asset 1,670.57 1,043.33
Interest expense on lease liabilities 627.26 410.50
Rent expenses related to short term leases 259.00 96.59
Total expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 2,556.83 1,550.42




Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over the useful econormic life and assessed for impairment, whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and
changes if any, made on prospective basis. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Amortisation methods and periods

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Intangible assets Useful life | Amortisation method used
Computer software 3 years Amortised on straight-line basis

@
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NOTE: 4b
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
X in Lakh
Computer software Total
Cost
As at April 01, 2023 6.37 6.37
Additions 42.21 42.21
Disposals 2 =
As at March 31, 2024 48.58 48.58
Additions 23.48 23.48
Disposals 2.51 2.51
As at March 31, 2025 69.54 69.54
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2023 1.28 1.28
Amortisation for the year 4.63 4.63
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 5.91 5.91
Amortisation for the year 19.31 19.31
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2025 25.22 25.22
Net carrying value as at:
March 31, 2025 44,32 44,32
March 31, 2024 42.67 42.67
March 31, 2023 5.09 5.09
Net carrying value
X in Lakh

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Other intangible assets 44.32 42.67 5.09

Total 44.32 42.67 5.09




(a)
6]

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a finaneial liability or
equily instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss are recognized immediately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place are recognized on the trade date.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories:

Non-derivative financial assets

Finaneial assets at amortised cost

Financial asset is measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR), if both the conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method:

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

(ii) Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

An instrument shall be measured at FVTOCI, if both of the following conditions are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

Financial assets included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair
value plus transaction cost. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income. However, the
Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain/ (loss) in the
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost eriteria or FVTOCI eriteria (refer above) are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, financial assets that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI eriteria but are designated
as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or financial assets that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVT'PL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on re-measurement recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized
when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Call options over shares in the acquired subsidiary is initially recognized as a financial asset at fair value, with
subsequent changes in fair value recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Equity investments

()

All equity investments (except Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture which does not fall under sco peofInd
AS 109 and are measured at cost) are measured at fair value as per Ind AS 109. Equity instruments which are held
for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equily instruments, the Company has an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Ifthe Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no reeyeling of the amounts from OCI to the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
orloss within equity.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies simplified approach of expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on lease
receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default oceurring as
the weights. Expected credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company




measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected ereditlosses.
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not inereased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period,
the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and

supportable information, thal is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that results from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed

based on a provision matrix, which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward
looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to
debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognized in OCI and is not reduced from the
carrying amount in the Standalone Balance Sheet.

The Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its
subsidiaries and joint venture. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the subsidiaries and joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries and joint

venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the impairment loss in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of owntership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershi p
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associaled liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
OCI and accumulated in equity is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, if such gain or loss




would have otherwise been recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that
financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (for example: when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss alloeated to it that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that
financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated

between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities only when the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not atiributable to
the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

de-recognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis

or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: §
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - SECURITY DEPOSITS
Tin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 747.81 617.19
Total 747.81 617.19
NOTE: 6
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:
Xinlakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets 682.68 682.68
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 682.68 682.68
=
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) relstes to the following:
XinLakh
Balance Sheat Statement of Profit and Loss
Asat Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Difference between carrying amount of Property Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets and their tax base 2411 24.11 = 16.42
Provision for gratuity & Leave encashment 33.03 33.03 - 1171
Provision for doubtful debts 17.02 17.02 & -
Disallowance under Section 43B and 40(a)(ia) of the Income i = . (1.93)
Other Items giving rise to temporary differences
Expenses on which TDS has not been deducted under section
40(a) {ia) = = -
Loss as per income tax computations available for offsetting
agalnst future taxable income 527.96 527.86 = 107.39
Impact of Ind AS 116 - -
a) Lease equalisation charges 80.57 80.57 - 60.31
RQU assets and lease liabilities =
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 116, recorded in -
retained earnings = =
Others - {0.16)
Measurement of Financial assets (Investments) at FYTPL = 17.47
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 682.68 682.68 - 211.20
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net):
in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As at the beginning of the year 682.68 470.92
Deferred tax income/ (expense] recognised in profit and loss during the year (Refer Note - 33) - 211.21
Deferred tax Income/ (expense] recognised in OCI during the year (Refer Nate - 33) = 0.55
As at the end of the year 682.68 682.68

MOTE: 6a - The company does not have forseeable future profits and hence, deferred tax provision has not been created for the current financial year and continue
previous year's provisions created only

NOTE: 7
OTHER TAX ASSETS
Xin Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance tax & TDS 10.59 4.65
Total 10.59 4.65
NOTE: 8
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Xin Lakh
Asal Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital Advances 89.55 49.08

Prepayments 2.78

Total 92.34 49.08




Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, and packing materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value. However, these items are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished produets, in which they will be
used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

Traded goods, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.
Work-in-progress and finished goods include costs of direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing cost. Traded goods cost includes cost
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and eondition. Cost is
determined on weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Proceeds in respect of sale of raw materials/ stores are credited to the respective heads. Obsolete and defective
inventory are duly provided for, basis the management estimates.




Hause of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Nates to the financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 9
INVENTORIES

%in Lakh

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

At lower of cost ond net realisable value

Raw materials
Fabric & Accessories

250.82 ‘34717
Cosmetics 207.98 296.65
Work-in-progress -
Fabric & Accessories - *
Finished goods
Garments 1,790.51 1568.90
Cosmetles 1,194.37 8835
Fashion Accessories 2 -
Total 3,443.68 2,301,07
= s
NOTE: 10
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS
Kin Lakh
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Loans and advances to employees
Unsecured, considered good

26.76 7.69
Total 26.76 7.69
NOTE: 11
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - SECURITY DEPOSITS
X in Lakh
As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good

106.91 27.04
Unsecured, considered doubtful 2553
132.43 27.04
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits -25.53
Total 106.91 54.&
NOTE: 12
TRADE RECEIVABLES
% in Lakh
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade recelvables from others

Unsecured, considered goad

535.93 51R.43
Unsecured, considered doubtful 67.60 67.60
Trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note - 38.3) S -
602.54 586.03
Less: Loss Allowances -67.60 (67.60)
Total 535.93 518.43
m—
Particulars Asat As at
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Undi Trade r — considered good
Lessthan 6 months 477.32 370.60
6 months - 1 year 104.20 144.50
1-2 years 22.01 7053
2-3 years =
Mere than 3 years -
Les: Provision for doubtful debts {67.50] {67.60)
[Total 535,93 518,43

= The amount is net of provision for discount and refund liabilities.

Note: In the FY 2024-25 & FY 2023-24, in order to establish any norm currently for any expected credit loss, HOMLPL does not have any appropriate trends or historic data, hence

no Expected credit loss working has been prepared as on balance sheet date




Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course

of business and reflect the Company's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the
passage of time).

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing
components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash

flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
loss allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS
109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial reco gnition of the receivables.




NOTE: 13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with bariks
Current accounts 2.06 117.20
Cash on hand 16.35 1542
Cheques/ drafts on hand
Total 18.41 132,62
= =<
Details of non-cash tr fons from | ing activities and Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
As at March 31, 2025
% In Lakh
As at Adjustments Cash flows N_un'mﬂ‘ changes As at
March 31,2024 (net) Al ““'“‘: Others March 31, 2025
o
Investing activities
Non-current investments - 5 -
Current investments - - - = =
Total - - - » 0.00 =
Financing activities
Non-current borrowings 366.50 - 30048 666.98
Current borrowings (including current maturities of non- 1,800.00
current barrowings) - 1,694.19 3,494.19
Lease liabilities 5,456.13 = {1,896.14) 5,472.22 8,032.20
Total 7,622.63 - 98.53 - 5,472,22 13,193.38
=es ==t
As at March 31, 2024
Xin Lakh
Bat o ctmants  CoSh flows F"f"""—*—" changes Asat
March 21, 2023 (et} FATVALE  Gthars March 31, 2024
___adjustments
Investing activities
Nan-current investments - - - - -
Current investments 1,917.31 - -1,917.31 - =
Total = < -1,917.31 o -
Financing activities
Non-current borrowings - 366.50 - - 366.50
Current barrowings [including current maturities of non-
current borrowings) - 1,800.00 - - 1,800.00
Lease liabilities 4,691.89 (2,180.77) 1,945.01 5,456.13
Total 4,691.89 - 98_5.73 - 1,943.01 7,622.63
NOTE: 14
BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
X in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earmarked deposits
Current accounts 17.02 16.16
Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 manths and having remaining maturity of less than 12 months)* = -
Total 17.02 16.16
* Bank balance ather than Cash and cash equivalents are held as margin maney under lien to banks for assuring guarantees,
NOTE: 15
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
X in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prepayments 3377 13.83
Advance to suppliers 155.43 396.01
Balances with govarnment autharities {other than income tax) 985.63 673.04
Other recelvables - -
Total 1,174.82 1,082.89
L




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 16
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

No. of shares Xin Lakh No. of shares Xin Lakh
Equity Share Capital
As at the beginning of the year 14,00,000 140.00 14,00,000 140.00
Issued during the year = - = =
As at the end of the year 14,00,000 140.00 14,00,000 140.00
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Rin Lakh No. of shares % in Lakh

As at the beginning of the year 10,01,046 10010 10,011,046 100,10
Increase during the year towards:

Fresh issue of Equity Share 1,14,193 11.42 -

Bonus Issue of Equity Share - - -

Allotment to Non-Resident (NR) shareholders {Refer Note - 17) - -

Exercise of Options (Refer Note - 43)
As at the end of the year 11,15,239 111.52 10,01,046 100.10
(i) Shares held by Promoters :
Shares held by Promoters As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

% Change during the

Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares |year
Masaba Richards 5,12,432 45.95% 4,76,055 47.56% -1.61%
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited & its nominees 6,02,807 54.05% 5,24,991 52.44% 1.61%
Total 11,15,239 100% 10,01,046 100%

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value as % 10/- each. Every holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(iii) Fresh Issue of Euity Shares

During the previous year, the Company has allotted 66,736 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 /- each fully paid up at a premium of Rs. 2,186/- vide resolution passed in the
meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on June 24, 2024. The Company has also allotted 47,457 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 /- each fully paid up at a
premium of Rs. 2,186/- vide resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on September 13, 2024.

(vi) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares % of paid-up No. of shares % of paid-up
held share capital held share capital
Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Limited (ABFRL) & its Nominee 6,02,807 54.05% 5,24,991 52.44%
Masaba Richards 5,12,432 45.95% 4,76,055.00 47.56%
(vii) Shares held by Holding/Ultimate Holding Company and/or their Subsidiaries/Associates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company are as below :
Name of Sharehalder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of paid-up No. of shares % of paid-up
held share capital held share capital
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited* 6,02,807 54.05% 5,24,991 52.44%

*Effective June 1, 2022, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited is the Holding Company.

e

e




NOTE: 17

OTHER EQUITY
Xin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
As at the beginning of the year 6,548.81 6,548.81
Inerease during the year
Issue of Fresh Equity Shares 2,496.26 #
Conversion of Preference Shares
Utilised during the year
For issue of Bonus Share 5 2
For Share issue expenses - B
As at the end of the year 9,045.07 6,548.81
Retained earnings
As at the beginning of the year (4,276.45) (2,007.36)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (3,597.46) (2,269.08)
As at the end of the year (7,873.91) (4,276.45)
Xin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
As at the beginning of the year (16.54) (14.90)
Gains/ (losses) during the year (0.18) (1.64)
As at the end of the year {16.72) (16.54)
Total 1,154.44 2,255.82
Other equity
Xin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium 9,045.07 6,548.81
Retained earnings (7,873.91) (4,276.45)
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans {16.72) {16.54)
Fair value gains/ (losses) on equity instruments = -
Total 1,154.44 2,255.82

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within cther equity is as follows:

1. Securities premium

Securities premium is used ta record the premium on issue of shares, and is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of

the year, the profit after tax/ loss is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to retained earnings.

3. Other comprehensive income

Gther comprehensive income comprises actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit obligation.

4. Remeasurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

The cumulative balances of gains/ (losses) arising on remeasurements of defined benefit plan is accumulated and recognised within this component of other comprehensive
income. ftems included in remeasurement gains/ (losses) reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to Standalane Statement of Profit and Loss.




Non derivative financial liabilities

() Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

(®

(2)

3)

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of itsliabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Compound financial instruments:

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A
conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of eash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognized as a liability on an

amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument's maturity date.

Financial liabilities:
All financial liabilities are measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts
issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market
interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading, if:

It has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;
or

On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.




(i)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may, be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition, if:

Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's

documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contracts to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Put Option on the Non-Controlling Interest (“NCI”) of subsidiary is initially measured at the
present value of the amount payable on exercise of the option, as per the terms of the agreement. The
subsequent changes in carrying amount is recognized in the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss.

However, financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, in which case these effects of
changes in credit risk are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognized in
other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in other comprehensive income under other
equity and are not subsequently reclassified to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabil ities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance
costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount on initial recognition,

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss over the period
of borrowings using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as




the transaction cost of the loan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fees are deferred until the draw down oceurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity and amortised over the period of facility to which it relates,

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The
dividends on these preference shares are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as
‘Finance costs'.

(iii) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

e  For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those which are
designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

e  For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI financial assets are treated as
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI
financial assets are recognized in OCL.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost
at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign curreney is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that
are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses
and is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 18
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

% in Lakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Secured, measured at amortised cost

Term Loans from Bank 997.66 366.50
Current maturities of Long term debts -500.00 -
Net Term Loan from Bank 497,65 366.50

Unsecured, measured at amortised cost

Term Leans from Others. 500.00 -
Current maturities of Long term debts -330.67 -
Net Term Loan from Bank 169.33 -
Total 666.98 366.50
Notes 18a

Term Loan from Bank consists of the following:

- Business Loan from ICICI Bank amounting to Rs. 897.66 lakhs (Rs. 366.5 lakhs as at 31 March 2024), is outstanding as at 31 March 2025 consisting of Rs. 500 lakhs pertaining to
current maturities, with interest chargeable @ 8.85% p.a.

Loan Is secured against all current assets & movebale fixed assets of the company

-Unsecured Business Loan is taken from ABFL amaunting to Rs. 500 lakhs of Rs. 330.67 lakhs represent current maturities as at 31 March 2025, is taken during the financial y=ar with
interest chargeable @ 9.75% p.a.

NOTE: 19
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - SECURITY DEPOSITS
X in Lakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Security Deposits 82.07 95.71
Total 82.07 95.71
NOTE: 20
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
% in Lakh
Asat As at

March 33, 2025 March 31, 2024

Employee henefit obligation

Stock Appreciation Rights {SAR) - NC 34.65
Provision for compensated absence 3457 20.34
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note - 37) 135.27 94,70
Total 204.49 115.04
SuEs ===
NOTE: 21
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
% in Lakh
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loans repayable on demand from banks

Working capital demand loan (Secured) 1,750.00 1,800.00

Bank Overdraft 413.52 -

Loan repayable on demand (Unsecured) 500.00 -
Current maturities of long‘term dabt 830.67 -
Total current borrowings. 3,494.15 1,800.00
Notes 21a

- WCDL from from ICICI Bank of Rs 1800 lakhs is secured against all current assets & movebale fixed assets of the company. The loan is repayable within 12 months and interest is
chargeable at the rate ranging between 8.60% to 8.70%.

- Unsecured WCOL is taken from ABFL of Rs 500 lakhs, the loan is repayable within 6 months and interest is chargeable at the rate of 9.50%

- Bank Overdraft of is from Axis Bank and ICICI bank with interest rate ranging between 8.50% to 8.60%

[
i\




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 22
TRADE PAYABLES

X in Lakh

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer details below)

62.11 363.02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 1,477.50 1,005.92
Total 1,539.61 1,368.93
Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006
% in Lakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises™® 62.11 363.02
Interest due on the above 1.03 3.08
b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year
c. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid - -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
e. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
The above disclosures are pravided by the Company based on the infarmation available with the Company in respect of the registration status of its vendors.
Ageing of Trade Payables:
Xin Lakh
Particulars Outstanding as on March 31,2025 (for following periods from due date of payment)
Not due Less than 1 More th
. « ut' £ LT 1-2 years|2-3 years| Org fhad Total
(including unbilled) year years
{i) MSME 23.29 38.81 - - 62.11
(i) Others 496.09 975.96 5.45 - - 1,477.50
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME = = E 2 =
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
Particulars Outstanding as on March 31,2024 (for following periods from due date of payment)
Not due Lessthan 1 More than 3
- ) 1-2 23 rs Total
{including unbilled) year years e years -
(i) MSME 7.91 355.11 - - “ 363.03
{it) Others 159.90 $46.02 - 5 = 1,005.92

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME

{iv) Disputed dues — Qthers

‘? FRN - 14B419WY
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NOTE: 23
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

Xin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Creditors for capital supplies 52.44 64,71
Employee Payable 15.56 208.15
Expenses Payable 665.29 37139
741.35 644.24
NOTE: 24
CURRENT PROVISIONS
Xin Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefit obligation
Provision for compensated absences 5.96 3.78
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note - 37) 18.34 15.29
Total 24.31 19.09
NOTE: 25
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
% in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances received from customers 201.25 91.45
Statutory dues Payable 80.61 63.36
Deferred income 37.34 24.14
Total 319.20 178.94

O (FRH - 1484190
&
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Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods/ services to

customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expect to be entitled for those goods/
services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

Identify the contract with a customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of preducts

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances, trade

discounts and volume rebates, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Assets and liabilities arising from right to return

The Company has contracts with customers which entitles them the unconditional right to return.

Right to return assets

Aright of return gives an entity a contractual ri%lt to recover the goods from a customer (return asset), if the customer
exercises ils option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the carrying amount of the

inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer.
The Company has therefore recognized refund liabilities in respect of customer's right to return. The liability is
measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates
its estimate of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities as required under Ind AS 115 in the
financial statements.

Income from gift voucher

Gift voucher sales are recognized when the vouchers are redeemed, and the goods are sold to the customer.

Income from services

Income from services is recognized as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned
parties, and recognized net of goods and services tax/ applicable taxes.

Interest income

Interest income onall debt instruments is measured at amortized cost. Interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument. Interest income is included in other income in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 26
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
% in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from sale of products
Sale of products - Garments, Accessories & Cosmetics 11,400.26 6,900.40
Total revenue from sale of products 11,400.26 6,900.40
Other operating income
Licence fees and royalties 14.24 12.45
Professional Fees 64.05 45,00
Total 11,478.55 6,957.85
(a) Right to return assets and refund liabilities:
R in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Right to return assets 35.77 102,03
Refund liabilities 217.02 0.60
(b) Contract balances:
T in Lakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract assets
Trade receivables 535.93 518.43
Contract Liabilities
Advances received from customers 201.25 91.45
{€) Reconciliation of revenue as recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:
X in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 12,429.05 7,466.34
Less:
Sales return 950.51 508.49
Ravenuea as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 11,478.55 6l957.85
(e) Disclosure of disaggregated revenue recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss basad on geographical segment:
X in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from customers outside India 764,08 682.59
Revenue from customers within (ndia 10,714.46 6,275.26
Revenue as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 11,475_.“55 6,957.85
NOTE: 27
OTHER INCOME
R in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on Fixed Deposits 0.95 0.60
Interest on IT Refund 0.29 0.55
Interest income on measurement of financial assets at amortised cost 50.06 32.18
Galn on measurement of invastments at FVTPL = 5
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets 48.73 -
Net gain on sale of current investments - 31.93
Provisian no longer required written back - =
Sundry Balances written back 8.97 8.95
Miscellaneous income 0.10 0.00

Total 109.11 74.21
e ==




NOTE: 28

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
%in Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Materials consumed - Fabric, Accessaries & Cosmetics
Inventories at the beginning of the year 643.82 275.17
Add: Purchases 3,490.20 2,554.55
4,134.03 2,825.72
Less: Inventaries at the end of the year 458,30 643.82
Totat _3,675.23 21985.90
(b) Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-In-progress and stock-in-trade
Opening inventories
Finished goods
Garments 1,568.90 51149
Costmeties 88.35 129.05
Fashion Accessories - 25.39
Work-in-progress - 29.98
1,657.25 695.92
Lass;
Closing inventories
Finished goods
Garments 1,790.51 1,568.90
Cosmetics 1,194.37 88.35
Fashlon Accessories = -
Wark-in-prograss - -
2,984.88 1,657.25
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories Jﬁar"sa) {961.33)
NOTE: 29
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
XinLakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,280.20 1,802.50
Director Remuneration 215.51 158.84
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note - 37) 45,97 25.28
Leave Encashment 1241 20.86
Stock Appreciation Rights 34.65 -
Gratuity expense (Refer Note -37) 40.10 29.63
Staff welfare expenses 107.34 48,52
Total 2,736.17 2,085.63
NOTE: 30
FINANCE COSTS
Xin Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense an borrawings 245.62 33.80
Interest expense on lease liabilities 627.26 410.50
Interest expense on Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 492 1.62
Total 878.95 445.91
NOTE: 31
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
% in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note - 3a) 394.50 271.72
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer Note - 4a ) 1,670.57 1,043.33
Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer Nota - 4b) 19.31 4.63
Total 2,084.79 1,319.69




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 32
OTHER EXPENSES
X in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Electricity charges 91.30 53.72
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 21.07 15.15
Others 23.63 9.95
Insurance 5.87 4.90
Rates and taxes 19.97 12.87
Processing charges 1,138.92 1,292.79
Commission & Brokerage 324.40 281.31
Digital Marketing Expenses 2,510.86 734.37
Advertisement and sales promotion 1,049.37 1,001.51
Transportation and handling charges 513.12 261.16
Legal and professional expenses 434.834 268.61
Provision for bad and doubtful deposits and advances 25.53 -
Printing and stationery 39.98 17.29
Travelling and conveyance 88.30 69.62
Communication expenses 7.46 14.96
Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment - 737
Bank and credit card charges 131.08 63.13
Payment to auditors (Refer details below) 15.19 13.84
IT and Subscription expenses 180.23 74.85
Interest & Late filing on statutory payments 2.44 1,92
Sampling Expense 40.52 10.16
Outsourcing, housekeeping and security expenses 68.36 37.36
Sundry Balances written off - =
Recruitment Expenses 12.16 18.93
Website maintenance charges 32.66 9.68
Miscellaneous expenses 51.36 60.99
Total 6,878.59 4,336.56
Payment to auditors:
X in Lakh
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
For audit fees {including Limited Review fees) 8.25 6.75
For tax audit fees 2.75 0.50
For other services 4.19 6.59
For reimbursement of expenses = =
Total 15.19 13.84




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
NOTE: 33

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The major components of (ncome tax {income)/ expense are:

Statement of Profit and Loss:

Xin Lakh
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current incame tax
Current income tax charge s 2
{A) - =
Deferred tax
Relating to crigination and reversal of temporary differences & (211.21)
MAT credit (entitlement)/ write-off - 5
(B} - {211.21)
Total (A+B] - {211.21]
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
% in Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.18 219
Income tax on re-measurament of defined benefit plans - (0.55)
Net (gains)/ losses on re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.18 1.64
Reconcillation of tax {income]/ expense and the accounting profit/ (lass) multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
Xin Lakh
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting Loss before income tax (3,597.48) (2,476.88)
Tax expense/(credit) at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2024; 25.17%) - (113.79)
Expenses disallowed for tax purposes - (9.77)
Others - (87.64)
Net tax expense/(credit) at India's Statutory income tax rate of 25.17% - -211.20
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) {Refer Note - 6)
Relating to origination and reversal of temperary differences 211.21
MAT credit (entitlement)/ write-off -
Total - 0.00
NOTE: 34

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

year.
The following reflects the profit/{loss) and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS camputations:

% In Lakh
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated as under:
Profit / (Loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss -3,597.46 -2,269.08
Loss for calculation of EPS (A) (3,597.46) (2,269.08)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS (B) 10,78,427 10,01,046
Basic EPS () (a/B) [333.58) {226.67)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 10,78,427 10,01,046
Weighted average number of potential equity shares?*
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Diluted EPS 10,78,427 10,01,046
Diluted EPS (X) ! (€) (333.58) (226.67)

Nominal value of shares (%)

10.00 10.00




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

(a) Contingent liabilities :
Disputed Demand/Claims
Bank Guarantees

= 5.00
Claims not acknowledged as debt = =
(b) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 111.80 438.01

for (net of advances)

Customs duty on capital goods and raw materials imported under advance licensing/ EPCG
scheme, against which export obligation is to be fulfilled

35.1 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable losses.

35.2 Bank guarantee was given by HOMLPL to MCGM in order to ensure faithful compliance of Waste Management Plan / Debris Management Plan
approved by the MCGM far FY 2024

36 Segment information

36.1 The principal business of the Company is of 'dealing in Garments & Accessories and Beauty Products ' through retail stores and online
channels. All other activities of the Company revolve around its main business. The Board of directors, has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company's performance, allocates resources based on analysis of the various

performance indicators of the Company as a single unit. CODM have concluded that there is only one operating reportable segment as defined
by Ind AS 108.

36.2 Geographical information
The Company operates in two geographical environments i.e. in India and outside India.

The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information about its non-current
assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Revenue from External Customers

Particulars For year ended For year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 10,714.46 6,275.26
Outside India 764.08 682.59
Total 11,478.54 6,957.85

Non-current Assets*

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Within lndia = =
QOutside India i -
Total & =

*Nan-current assets exclude investments in subsidaires, loans, finance lease receivables, other financial assets, and deferred tax assets.




House of Masaba Lifestyle Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

37 Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plans:
The Company participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in
relation to provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by The Company at rates specified by the

rules of provident fund. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were
not paid until after the end of the reporting period.

(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make
monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are
made to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India {GOI). The Company has no further obligations under
the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the period
they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits
expense, are as under:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i} Employer's cantribution to provident fund and pension 34.30 19.68

ii) Employer's contribution to labour fund 0.42 0.16

iii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 4.49 4.51

Total 39.20 24.34

(b} Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an
actuarial valuation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March
31, 2025 by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

(1) Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase
in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(2) Interest rate risk

Afall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher pravision. A
fall in the discaunt rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

(3) Investment risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. I the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt
instruments.

{4) Mortality risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.




(B)

Principal actuarial assumptions used:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars

Gratuity (Unfunded)

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

1. Discount rate - Company

6.70%

7.20%

2. Salary escalation - Company

Management - 8%
Non Management - 7%

Management - 8%
Non Management - 7%

3. Rate of employee turnover - Company

4. Mortality rate

Upto 30 years - 18%/20%
Upto 31-40vyears - 15%
Above 40 years - 10%

Upto 30 years - 18%/20%
Upto 31 - 40 years - 15%
Above 40 years - 10%

100% of Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

(@

Expenses recognised in profit and loss
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2025 2024

Service cost:

Current service cost 32.19 2331
Net Interest cost 7.91 6.32
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 40.10 29.63

(D)

The current service cost and the net interest expenses far the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in the

Statement of profit and loss.

Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded)
For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Interest cost 7.91 6.32
Interest income - &
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 7.91 6,32

(E)

Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)

Particulars

For year ended March 31,
2025

For year ended March 31,1
2024

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptiaons

- Due to changes in financial assumptions 5.49 1.87
- Due to experience adjustment -5.31 0.31
Return an plan assets, excluding interest income
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI 0.18 2.19




(F)

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 153.62 109.99
Fair value of plan assets = ,,
153.62 109.99
(G) Net asset/{liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Long term provision 135.27 94.70
Short term provision 18.34 15.29
Total 153.62 109.99
(H) Mavements in the present value of defined benafit obligation are as follows:
Particulars For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 109.99 84.65
Current service cost 32.19 23.31
Interest cost 7.91 6.32
Actuarial losses 0.18 219
Transfer in/(out) obligation 12.84 -
Benefits paid from the fund {9.50) (6.48)
Closing defined benefit obligation 153.62 109.99
(1) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Year 1 cashflow 18.34 15.29
Year 2 to 5 cashflow 70.75 53.63
Year 6 to 10 cashflow 63.16 45.67
More 10 year 131.86 92.74
Total expected payments 284.11 207.34
(1) Sensitivity analysis
The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a
change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice
such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the
sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
af the reparting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no
change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For year ended March 31, | For year ended March 31,
2025 2024
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Rate of discounting
(+0.5% change) (3.60%) (3.40%)
(-0.5% change) 3.80% 3.60%
Rate of salary increase
(+0.5% change) 3.20% 2.90%
(-0.5% change) (3.00%) (2.80%)
(K) Other disclosures

The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 2025 is 7 years.
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38
38.1

Related party disclosures
Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Holding Company

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

- Whole Time Director (Effective 6 February, 2025)
- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 1 June, 2022)

- Director (Effective 12 December, 2022)

- Relative of Whole Time Director

Masaba Gupta
Vivek Mehra
Ashish Dikshit
Jagdish Bajaj
Ullal Sooraj Bhat
Neena Gupta

Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise
significant influence (where transactions have taken place)

laypore E-Commerce Private Limited (Effective 1 June, 2022)

38.2

Transactions during the year with related parties
s. No. |Particulars For year ended March | For year ended March 31,
31,2025 2024
A|Holding Company
Issue of Equity Shares (Including Securities Premium) 1,708.84 -
Reimbursement of corporate overhead/cost allocation*® 348.00 258.00
B|Whole Time Director
I|Masaba Gupta
Issue of Equity Shares (Including Securities Premium) 798.84 i
Managerial Remuneration 21551 158.84
House Rent Perquisite 31.23 28.57
Post Employment benefits 3.56 3.33
C|Relative of Whole Time Director
Advance received for Sale of Goods 9.00 -

38.3

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of bhusiness and on terms equivalent to thase that prevail in arn's length
transactions. All the related party transactions are reviewed and approved by board of directors.

*(The reimbursement of corporate overhead/cost allocation includes Gratuity, LTA and leave encashment amounting to Rs. 23.42 Lakhs)

Amounts outstanding with related parties

§. No. |Particulars

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

>

Holding Company
|| Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

Relative of Whole Time Director
Neena Gupta
Advance received for Sale of Goods

Payable for Reimbursement of corporate overhead/cost allocation

117.62 124.98

9.00 =
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39 Financial instruments and risk management

39.1 Capital risk management

The Company’s objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder'’s expectations. The policy of the Company is to horrow funds
through banks or raise through equity which is supported by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the reguirement of financial
markets. The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by variaus metrics. The following
table summarises the capital of the Company :

As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Short term debts*(including current maturities of long term debt) 3,494.19 1,800.00
Long term debts* 666.98 366.50
Total Debts 4,161.17 2,166.50
Total Equity 1,265.96 2,355.93
Net debt to equity ratio 3.29 0.92

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31,2024

* Debt excludes lease liabilities
33.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Measured at FVTPL
(a) Investments = -

Measured at amortised cost

(a) Loans {including inter corporate deposit) 26.76 7.69
(b) Security deposits 854,71 644.23
(c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Deposits) 17.02 16.16
(d) Cash and cash equivalent 18.41 132.62
(e) Bank balance other than {d) above - -

(f) Trade receivables 535.93 518.43

(g) Other financial assets = -

Total financial assets 1,452.83 1,319.13

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

(a) Borrowings 4,161.17 2,166.50
(b) Trade payables 1,539.61 1,368.93
(c) Lease Liabilities 9,032.20 5,456.13
{d) Other financial liabilities 741.35 644.25
(e} Security Deposits 82.07 95.71
Total financial liabilities 15,556.41 9,731.52

YA
Mumbai ) 2|

*




39.3 Financial risk management objectives

—

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company periodically reviews the risk management policy so that the
management manages the risk through properly defined mechanism. The focus is to foresee the unpredictability and minimise potential adverse
effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Company’s overall risk management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects
of financial market on the Company’s performance are as follows:

- Market risk

—

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Since the company does not have significant exposure to interest rate risk due to its minimal outstanding borrowings and insignificant interest
cost, the interest rate sensitivity analysis is not calculated.

(b) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

(a). Financial liabilities:
In USD 5

Equivalent in ¥ lakhs 5 =

(b). Financial assets:

In USD 748 -
In CAD 25,386.00 -
In AUD = 2,989.46
In Dinar % 288.03
Equivalent in % lakhs 16.4 2.4

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, Euro, CNY exchange rates, with all other variables held

constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. Sensitivity due to
unhedged Foreign Exchange Exposures is as follows:

Impact on Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year

. For Year ended For Year ended
Partiulan: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a). Financial liabilities:
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) - -
0.50% decrease (%) “ -

{b). Financial assets:
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) 0.82 0.12

0.50% decrease (%) (0.82) (0.12)




(ii).

(a)

(iti}.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
To manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial relizbility of customers and other counterparties, taking into account the financial
condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and
periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the
Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company'’s internal
assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable dues where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables

The Company deesn't have sufficient Historic data or trends for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables. The
Company has adopted a policy to review the trade receivables outstanding for more than six manths, the expected exposure has been
recognised as a provision. Credit risk has always been managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously manitoring
the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Liquidity risk management

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company
believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

Further, the Company manages its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or stress.
Such risk is managed through ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents position.
The management has arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring
future cash flows and liquidity on a regular basis.

Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibility to liquidate at short notice and are
included in cash equivalents. Besides, it generally has certzin undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and when required, which are
reviewed periodically.

Liquidity risk table
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

: Upto
Particulars 1-5 years 5 years and Above Total

1year

March 31, 2025
Borrowings - - - -
Lease Liabilities 2,266.73 7,849.70 1,248.13 11,364.55
Trade payables 1,539.61 - - 1,539.61
Other financial liabilities 741.35 - - 741.35
Security Depasit 58.96 23.11 82.07
Total 4,606.65 7,872.81 1,248.13 13,727.60
March 31, 2024
Borrowings = 2 = =
Lease Liabilities 1,376.10 4,548.54 941.74 6,866.38
Trade Payables 1,368.93 - - 1,368.93
Other Financial Liabilities 644.25 - - 644.25
Security Deposit 58.96 36.75 95.71
Total 3,448.25 4,585.29 941.74 8,975.28
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
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40 Fair value measurements

This note provides information about how the Compa ny determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.
41.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The Company has not measure any financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

41.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in these financial statements
approximate their fair values.

42 Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to any party as per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of
Investments made by the company are given in Note 0 in financial statement

43 Other Notes

43.1 The Company does not own benami properties. Further, there are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

43.2 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period. During each reporting period, the
Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

43.3 There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Company during each reporting period, which required approval from the Competent
Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

43.4 Relationship with struck-off companies
Based on the information available with the company, it did not have any transactions with Com panies struck off.

43.5 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

43.6 The Company has not made any delay in Registration of Charges under the Companies Act, 2013.

43.7 Code of Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come irto effect has not
been notified. the Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the
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44 Ratio Analysis and its elements
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Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Current assets

5,323.55 4,085.93

Current liabilities 724914 4.886.76
Ratio (In times) 0.68 0.82
9 Change from previous year -17.07%
Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity

. As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Net profit after tax {3,597.64) (2,270.73)
Total equity® 1,810.94 3,491.29
Ratio -1.99 -0.65
% Change from previous year 205.45%

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity,

Reason for change more than 25%:
Decrease in FY 24-25, is due to increase in expenses in order to achieve higher sales.

Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory

As at March 31, 2025

i As at March 31, 2024
|Particulars
Cost of materials consumed 3,675.23 2,185.90
Average Inventory 2,321.06 1,176.58
Ratio (In times) 1.58 1.86
9 Change from previous year -14.77%'|
Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables

: As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Credit Sales* 11,478.55 6,957.85
Average Trade Receivables # 448.44 358.71
Ratio (In times) 25.60 19.34
% Change from previous year 32.33%

* Credit sales Includes sale of products, services and scrap sales.

Reason for change more than 25%:
Increase in FY 24-25, s due to early recovery of payments with increase in Sales during the year

Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

i As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Particulars

Credit Purchases 3,490.20 2,554.55

Closing Trade Payahbles 1,454.27 94717
Ratio (In times) 2.40 2.70
% Change from previous year -12.38%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Sales (A) 11,478.55 6,957.85

Current Assets (B} 5,32355 4,085.93

Current Liabilities (C) 7,849.14 4,986.76

Net Working Capital (D=B-C) (2,525.60) (900.83)
Ratio (In times) (E= A /D) -4.54 -7.72
% Change from previous year -41.16%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Decrease in FY 24-25, on account of increase in Borrowings

Net profit ratio = Net profit before tax divided by Sales

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Net profit before tax

Sales

Ratio

% Change from previous year

(3,597.46) (2,476.88)
11,478.55 6,957,85
-0.31 -0.36

-11.96%)
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Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes {EBIT) divided by average Capital Employed

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Profit before tax (A) (2,718 51 (2,030.97)
EBIT (B) = (A) (2,718.51) (2,030.97)
Total Assets (C) 17,370.37 12,400.52
Current Liabilities (D) 7,849.14 4,986.76
Capital Employed (E)=(C}-(D) 9,521.23 7,413.75
Ratio -0.29 -0.27
% Change from previous year 4.23%,

Reason for change more than 25%:

Decrease in FY 24-25, on account of increase in losses & increase in Current Borrowings during the current year,

Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Total Debts 4,161.17 2,166.50
Shareholder's funds 1,265.96 2,355.93
Ratio 3.29 0.92
% Change from previous year 100%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Increase in FY 24-25, due to Current & Non current borrowings.

Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal repayments.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Profit after tax (A) -3,597.64 -2,270.73
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

-Depreciation and amartisation (B) 2,084.79 1,319.69

-Finance cost (C) 878.95 445.91
- Provision for doubtful debts (D) 25.53 ~

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) (E= B+C+D) 2,989.27 1,765.60
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) (F = E {1-Tax rate)) 2,236.93 1,321.23
Earnings available for debt services (G = A+F) -1,360.71 -949.49
Debt service

Interest (H) 246.77 33.80
Lease payments (1) 1,896.14 1,180.77
Principal repayments (J) - 227.17
Total Interest and principal repayments (K= H +1 +1]) 2,142.91 1,441.74
Ratio (In times) (L= G/I ) -0.63 -0.66
% Change from previous year -3.58%

45 Events after balance sheet date
No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements by the Board of Directors of the

Sheetal Jethaji Solanki
Partner
Membership No: 174874 ~

Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

As per our report of even date
ForSCVJ & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 148419W

/.

AR

UDIN . 95 34 ST LHBMNZ G131 S™
sl

46 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.
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